Company Na.
284669 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

0665A86/py




-

Company No,
284669 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD -
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

CONTENTS

Pirectors’ report
General information and summary of significant accounting policies
Financial statements
Income statements
Statements of comprehensive Income
Balance sheasts
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Company statement of changes in equity
Cash flow statements
Notes to the financial statements
Supplementary information
Statement by Diractors
Statutory declaration

Independent auditors’ report

Pages

31-32
- 33
34 - 35

36 -37

38-39 -

40 - 43
44 - 425
126

127

127
128 - 130




Company No.
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AIRASIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors hereby subrnit their annual report to the members together with the audited financlal
statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is that of providing air transportation services. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries are described in Note 9 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes In the nature of these activities during the financial year.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Groug' Company
RM'000 RM'G00
Net profit for the financial year 541,280 72,608
DIVIDENDS

The dividends on ordinary shares pald by the Company since the end of the previous financial
year wera as follows:

RM'000
In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2014,
- a first and final single-tier dividend of 3 sen per ordinary
share each on 2,782,074,080 ordinary shares
of RMO0.10 each, paid on 2 July 2015 83,489

The Dirsctors now recommend a first and final single-tier dividend In respect of the financial year
ended 31 December 2015 of 4 sen per share on 2,782,974,080 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each
amounting to RM111,318,963, which is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

All material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year are shewn in the
financial statements,
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AIRASIA BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURES

There was no Issuance of shares and debentures during the financial year.

DIRECTORS

. The Directors who have held office during the period since the date of the last report are as

follows:

Datuk Kamarudin Bin Meranun

Tan Srl Dr. Anthony Francis Fernandss

Dato’ Abdsl Aziz @ Abdul Aziz Bin Abu Bakar
Pato’ Fam Leae Ee

Aireen Omar

Amit Bhatla

Stuart L Dean Appointed on 15 June 2015
Dato' Sri Gnanaraja A/L M. Gnanasundram Appointad on 21 December 2015
Dato’ Mchamed Khadar Bin Matican Appointad on 16 February 2016
Robert Aaron Milton Resigned on 3 June 2015
Uthaya Kumar A/A. K Vivekananda Resignad on 4 January 2016

DIRECTORS' BENEFITS .

During and at the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2015, no arrangements subsisted
to which the Company is a party, being arrangements with the object or objects of enabling
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become antitled to receive
a benefit by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director
or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial financial
Interest, axcept as disclosed in Note 2 and Note 32 to the financial statements.
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AJRASIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

PIRECTORS' REPORT {CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES

According to the register of Directors' shareholdings, particulars of interests of Directors who held
office at the end of the financial year in shares and options over shares in the Company are as
follows:

Number of ordinary shares of BM0.10 each
At At
1.1.2015 Acquired (Disposed) 31.12.2015

Direct interasts ih the Company
Dato’ Abdel Aziz @ Abdul Aziz

Bin Abu Bakar 95,000** 10,000 (105,000) -
Tan Sri Dr, Anthony Francls Fermandes © 1,600,000%** - - 1,800,000
Datuk Kamarudin Bin Meranun 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
Robert Aaron Milton 100,000**** - (100,000) -
Aireen Omar - 50,000 - 50,000
Stuart L Dean - 40,000 - 40,000
Indirect interests
Tan Sri Dr. Anthony Francis Fernandes * 531,212,082 - {2,670,000) 528,542,082
Datuk Kamarudin Bin Meranun * 531,212,082 - {2,670,000) 528,542,082

* By virtue of their interests in shares in the substantial shareholder of the Company, Tune Air
Sdn. Bhd, {"TASB"), Tan Sri Dr. Anthony Francis Fernandes and Datuk Kamarudin Bin
Meranun are deemed to have interests in the Company to the extent of TASB's interests
therain, in accordance with Section 6A of the Companies Act, 1985.

**  Shares held under CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

** Shares held under CIMB Group Nomineas (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

** Shares held under HDM Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd.

According to the register of Directors’ shareholdings, other than as disclosed above, none of the

other Directors in office at the end of the financial year held any interest in shares or debentures of
the Gompany and its related corporations during the financial year.
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AIRASIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

STATUTORY INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Before the financial statements of the Group and the Company were made out, the Directors took
reasonable steps: :

{a) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and
the making of allowance for doubtful debts and satisfled themselves that all known bad
debts had been written off and that adequate allowance had been made for doubtful debs;
and

[(2)} to ensure that any current assets, other than debts, which were unlikely to realise in the
ordinary course of business their values as shown in the accounting records of the Group
and Company, had been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to
realise.

At the date of this report, the Direciors are not aware of any circumstances:

{a) - which would render the amounts written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance
for doubtful debts in the financial statements of the Group and Company inadequate to
any substantial extent; or

() which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of
the Group and Gompany misleading; or

{c) which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or
liabilities of the Group and Company misleading or Inappropriate.

No contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within
the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the
Diractors, will or may affect the abflity of the Group or Company to meet their obligations as and
when they fall due.

At the date of this repori, there does not exist:

{a) any charge on the assets of the Group and Gompany which has arisen since the and of
the financial year which secures the liability of any other person; or

(9] any contingent liability of the Group and Company which has arisen since the end of the
financlal year.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with
In this report or the financial statements which would render any amount stated in the financial
statements misleading.
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AIRASIA BERHAD

{(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

STATUTORY INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

tn the opinion of the Directors:

(@) the results of the Group's and Company's operations during the financial year were not
substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature
other than as disclosed in the Income Statements and Note 3 to the financial statements;
and .

)] there has not arisen In the Interval between the end of the financial year and the date of
this report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely to affect

substantially the results of the operations of the Group and Gompany for the financial year
in which this report is made.

AUDITORS

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

In accordance with & resolution of the Board of Directors dated 31 March 20158

DATUK KAMARUDIN BIN MERANUN AIREEN OMAR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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GENERAL INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES '

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is that of providing air fransportation services. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries are described in Note 9 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year. '

The address of the registered office of the Company is as follows:

B-13-15, Level 13,

Menara Prima Tower B,

Jalan PJU1/39, Dataran Prima
47301 Petaling Jaya

Selangor Darul Ehsan

The address of the pringipal place of business of the Company Is as follows:

LCC Terminal

Jalan KLIA §3
Southern Support Zone
KL International Airport
64000 Sepang
Selangor Darul Ehsan

The financial statements have been approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
Board of Directors on 31 March 2016.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Unless otherwise stated, the following accounting policies have been applied consistently in
dealing with items that are considered matetial in relation to the financial statements:

{a) Basls of preparaticn

The financial statements of the Group and Company have baen prepared in accordance
with the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (MFRSY), International Financlal
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

The financial statements have been preparad under the historical cost convention, oxcept
as disclosed in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRS requires the use of certain
ctitical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported
period. It also requires Directors to exerclse their judgment in the procass of applying the
Group and Company’s accounting policies. Although these estimates and judgment are
based on the Directors’ best knowledge of current events and actions, actual resuits may
differ. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, .or areas where
assumptions and estimates are signfficant to the financial statements are discloged in Note
G
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AIRASIA BERHAD
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GENERAL INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

-{b) Standards. amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective

The Group has applied the following amendments for the first time for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2015:

s Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2010 ~ 2012 Cycle
» Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle
» Amendments to MFRS 119 “Defined Benefit Plans: Employees Contributions”

The adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the current or any prior
year and are not likely to affect future periods.

{c) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations 1o existing standards
that are applicable to the Group but not yet sffectiva

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and Inferpretations are
effective for financial year beginning after 1 January 2016. None of these is expected to
have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group, except the
following set out balow:

» Amendment to MFRS 11 ‘Joint arrangements’ (effective from 1 January 2016)
requires an investor to apply the principles of MFRS 3 ‘Business Combination’
when [t acauires an interest in a joint operation that consiiiutes a business. The
amendments are applicable to both the acquisition of the initlal interest in a joint
operation and the acquisition of additional inferest in the same joint operation.
However, a previously held interest is not re-measured when the acquisition of an
additional interest in the same joint operation results in retaining joint control.

. Amendments to¢ MFRS 116 'Property, plant and equipment and MFRS 138
‘Intangible assets’ (effective from 1 January 2018) clarify that the use of revenue-
based methods to calculate the depreciation of an item of property, plant and
equipment is not appropriate. This is because revenue generated by an activity
that includes the use of an asset generally reflects factors other than the
consumptioh of the economic benefits embodied in the asset.

The amendments to MFRS 138 also clarify that revenus is generally presumed io
be an Inappropriate basis for measuring the consumption of the ecenomic benefits
embodied in an intangible asset. This presumption can be overcome only in the
limited eircumstances where the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue or where it can be demonstrated that revenue and the consumption of the
economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly correlated,
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GENERAL INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{c) Standards, amengments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards
that are applicable to the Group but not yet effective (continued)

MFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments' {effective from 1 January 2018) will replace MFRS
138 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognltion and Measurement',

MFRS @ retains but simplifies the mixed measurement mode! in MFRS 139 and
establishes three primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortisad
cost, fair value through profit or loss and fair value through other comprehensive
incoma ("OCi"). The basis of classification depends on the entity's business model
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financlal asset. Investmenits in
equity instruments are always measured at fair vaiue through profit or loss with an
irrevocable option at Inception to present changes in fair value in OCI (provided
the instrument is not held for trading). A debt Instrument is measured at amortised
cost only if the entity s holding It to collect contractual cash flows and the cash
flows represent principal and interest.

For liabilities, the standard retains most of the MFRS 139 requirements. These
include amortised cost accounting for most financial liabilities, with bifurcation of
embedded derivatives. The main change Is thai, in cases where the falr value
optlon is taken for financial liabllities, the part of a fait value change due to an
entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive Income rather than the
income statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch.

MFRS 9 introduces an expected credit loss model on impairmant that replaces the
incurred Joss impairment model used In MFRS 139. The expected credit luss
model is forward-looking and eliminates the need for a trigger event to have
occurred before credit losses are tecognised,
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GENERAL. INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

. B SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{c) Standards, amendments to_published standards and interpretations to existing standards
. that are applicable to the Group but not yet effective (continued)

. MFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers' (effective from 1 January .
2018) replaces MFRS 118 ‘Revenue’ and MFRS 111 ‘Construction contracts’ and
i related interpretations. The standard deals with revenue recognition and
' establishes principles for reporting usefu! Information fo users of financial
statements about the naturs, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenus and cash
flows arising from an entity's contracts with customers.

Revenue is recognised when a customer ohtains control of a good or service and
thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or
service. The corg principle In MFRS 15 is that an entity recoghises revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to the customer in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

The Group and the Gommpany are in the process of assessing the full impact of the above
standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations on the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company in the year of initial application.

{d) Basis of consolidation
0] Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group conirols an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affsct those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations.
The consideratlon transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities Incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
. and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transfarced
- includes the fair value of any asset or liabilliy resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilitles and
- contingent liabilities assumed In a business combination are measured Initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recoghises any nen-controlling
interest in the acquiree oh an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value
or at the hon-controlling interest's proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of
the acquirer's previously held equity interest in-the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.
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GENERAL INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{d) ° Basls of consolidation (continued)

(i)

(ir}

Subsidiaries (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group Is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with MFRS 139 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that Is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and lts subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interast in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net agssts acquired is
racognised as goodwill. If the total of consideration fransferred, non-controlling
interest racognised and previously held interest measured is less than the {air
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the differance is recognised directly in the income siatement.

Inter-compaty transactions, belances and unrealised gains on iransacticns
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Where necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conforrrt with the Group’s accounting policies.

Jolnt arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which there is contractually agreed
sharing of control by the Group with one or more parties, where declsions about
the relevant activities relating to the joint arrangement require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. The classification of a jolnt arrangemant as a joint
operation or a joint venture depends upon the rights and abligations of the parties
to the arrangement. A Joint venture is a Joint arrangement whereby the joint
venturers have rights to the net assets of the arrangsment. A joint operation is a
joint arrangement whereby the joint cperators have rights to the assets and
cbligations for the liabilities, relating fo the arrangement.

The Group's interest in a joint venture is accounted for in the financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method of accounting,
interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the postacquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive inceme. When the Group’s share of losses in
a Jolnt venture equals or exceeds lts interests in the Joint ventures (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the joint ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures. If the joint
venture subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of profits equals the share of losses not
tecognised. Where ah entity loses joint control over a joint venture but retains
sighificant influence, the Group does not re-measure ifs continued ownership
inferest at fair value.

10
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GENERAL INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Basis of cansolidation (continued)

(i1

(i)

Joint arrangements {continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its Joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted using the
equity method of accounting together with any long-term Interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group's net Investrnent in the associate. In this regard,
a receivable for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the
foresesable future Is, in substance, an extension of the Group’s investment in that
associate. This does not include receivable for which adequate collateral exists.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the
carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the Investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's investment
in agsociates includes goodwil! identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where approptiate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised In the income
staternent, and its share of post-acquisition movements In other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with & carresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further lossas,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on -
behalf of the assoclate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising lts share of those profits only after its share of profits equals
the share of losses not recognised.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there Is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this Is the case, the
Group caloulates the amount of Impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to ‘share of results of associates' in the income statement,

11
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GENERAL INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

{d)

(e}

Basis of consolidation {continued)
iii) Associates (continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions betwsen
the Group and its associates are recognised in the Group’s financial statements
only to the exient of unrelated investor's interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are sliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of assoclates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising In investments in associates are recognised In
profit or loss.

Property, plant and eguipment

Properly, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of properiy, plant and equipment
initially recognised includes its purchase price and any cost that Is directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Costs also include borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (refer
to accounting policy Note B(s) on borrowing costs).

Where significant parts of an item of property, plant and eguipment are required to be
replaced at Intervals, the Group recognises such parts In the carrying amount of the
property, plant and equipment as a replacement when it is probable that future economic
benefits assoclated with the parts will flow to the Group and the cost of the parts can be
measurad reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derscognised. Ali other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as expenses in profit or loss during the financial
pariod in which they are Incurred.

Significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment are depreciated separately
aver their estimated useful lives In accordance with the principle in MFRS 116 ‘Property,
Plant and Equipment’. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write-off
the cost of the assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives.

12




Company No.

284669 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

GENERAL INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{e) Property, plant and equipment {continued)

The useful lives for this purpose are as follows:

Aircraft
- englnes and alrframe excluding service potential 25 years
- service potential of engines and airframe 8 or 13 years
Alrcraft spares 10 years
Aircraft fixtures and fittings Useful life of aircraft or remaining lease
term of aircraft, whichever is shorter
Buildings
- simulator 28.75 years
- hangar 50 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment, furniture and fittings byears
Office renovation 5years
Simulator equipment ' 25 years
Operating plant and ground equipment 5 years
In-flight equipment 5 years
Training equipment 5 years

Service potential of 8 years represents the period over which the expectad cost of the first
major aircraft engine overhau! is depreciated. Subsequent to the engine overhaul, the
actual cost Incurred is capitalised and depreciated over the subsequent 8 years,

Service potential of 13 years represents the period over which the expected cost of the
first major airframe check is depreciated. Subsequent to the airframe check, the actual
cost incurred is capitalised and depreciated over the subsequent 13 years.

Assets not yet in operation are stated at cost and are not depreciated untll the assets are
ready for their intended use. Useful lives of assets are reviewed and adjusted If
appropriate, at the balance sheet date,

Residual values, where applicable, are reviewed annually against prevailing market rates
at the balance sheet date for equivalent aged assets and depreciation rates are adjusted
accordingly on a prospeciive basis. For the current financial year ended 31 December
2015, the estimated residual value for aircraft airframes and engines is 10% of their cost
(2014: 10% of their cost).

An element of the cost of an acquired aircraft Is attributed on acquisition to its service
potential, reflecting the maintenance condition of its engines and airframe. This cost, which
can equate to a substantial element of the total ajreraft cost, is amortised over the shorter
of the period to the next chacks or the remaining life of the aircraft.

The cost of subsequent major airframe and engine maintenance chacks as well as

upgrades to leased assets are capitalised and amortised over the shorter of the period to
the next check or the remalning life of the aircraft.

13
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GENERAL INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED}

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(@

{f

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group assesses whether there is any indication of
impairment. If such an indication exists, an analysis Is performed to assess whether the
carrying amount of the asset is fully recoverable. A write down is made if the carrying
amount exceeds the recoverable amount. See accounting policy Note B(h) on impairment
of non-financial assets.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying
amount and are included in profit or loss.

Deposits on aircraft purchase are included as part of the cost of the aircraft and are
depreciated from.the date that aircraft is ready for its intended use.

Intangible assets
)] Research and development — internally developed software

Research expendiiure is recognised &s an expense when incurred, Costs incurred
on development projects (relating to the design and testing of new or improved
products) are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are
fulfllled:

« It is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale;
management intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset

» it can be demonsirated how the intangible asset will generate probable future
aconomic benefits;

* adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible asset are available; and

= the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development can
he reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as
an expense when incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not racognised as an asset in subseguent period,

Capitalised develcpment costs recognised as intangible assets are amorttised from
the point at which the asset is ready for use on a stralght-line basis over its useful
life.

14
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GENERAL INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED) .

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{H intanglble assets {continusd)

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises from a business combination and represents the excess of the
aggregate of falr value of consideration transferred, the amcunt of any non-

- controlling interest in the acquires and the fair value of any previous equity interost

in the acquiree over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabllities assumed on the acquisition date. If the falr value of consideration
transferred, the amount of non-controlling interest and the fair value of previcusly
held interest in the acquiree are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the acquiree, the resulting galn is recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually or more frequantly
it events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired Inh a business combination is allocated o each of the cash
generating units ("CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units o which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is
rmonitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at operating
segment level. The carrying value of goodwili is compared to the recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently
reversed.

The carrying value of goodwill Is comparad to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the falr vaiue less costs of disposal. Any impalrment is
recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

{2 investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

In the Company's separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates are stated at cost less accurnulated impairment losses.

Amounts dug from associates of which the Company does not expect repayment in the
foreseeable future are treated as part of the parent's net investment in assoclates. Where
an indication of Impairment exists, the carrying amount of the invesiment is assessed and
written down immediately to its recoverable amount (see Note B{h)). On disposal of
Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, tha difference between disposal
proceeds and the carrying amounts of the investments are recognised in proflt or loss.
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(h)

(i

()

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested for
impalrment annually, or as and when events or efrcumstances occur indicating that an
impalrment may exist. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset,exceads its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value-in-use. For the purpose of
assassing Impairment, assets are grouped at the loweast level for which there are
separately identiflable cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal at each reporting date.

Any impalirment loss is charged to profit or loss unless it reverses a previous revaluation In
which case it is charged to the revaluation surplus. Impairment logses on goodwill are not
reversed. In respect of other assets, any subsequent increase in recoverable amount is
recognised in profit or loss unless it reverses an impairment loss on a revalued asset in
which case it is taken to revaluation surplus.

Maintenance and overhaul
Owned aircraft

The actounting for the cost of providing major airframe and certain engine maintenance
checks for owned aircraft is described in the accounting policy for property, plant and
equipment.

Leased aircraft

Where the Group has a commilment to maintain aircraft held under operating leases,
provision is made durlng the lease term for the rectification obligations contained within the
lease agreements. The provisions are based on estimataed future costs of major airframe,
certain engine maintenance checks and one-cff costs incurred at the end of the lease by
making appropriate charges to the income statement calculated by reference to the
number of hours or cycles operated during the financlal year.

Leases

A lease Is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lesses in return for a payment,
or series of payments, the right to use an asset for an agreed pericd of time.

Lesses

Finance leases .
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the lease’s commencament at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimurn lease paymernt.
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Leases (continued)

Lessee (continued)

Finance leases (continued)

Each lease payment is allocated between the liabilily and finance charges so as to
achieve a periodic constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in payables. The
interest element of the finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
gach period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases - is
depreclated overthe shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Initial direct costs incurred by the Group in negotiating and arranging finance leases are
added to the carrying amount of the leased assets and recognised as an expense in profit
or loss aver the lease term on the same basis as the lease expense.

Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance lease coniracts are depreciated
over the estimated useful life of the asset, in accordance with the annual rates stated in
Note B{e) above. Where there is no reasonable certainty that the ownership will be
transferred to the Group, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its
useful life.

Operating leasas

Leases of assets where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease period.

Sale and leaseback transactions

When a sale and leaseback results in a finance lease, any gain oh the sale is deferred and
recognised as income over the leasa term. Any loss on the sale is immediately recognised
as an impairment loss when the sale occurs.

It the leaseback is classified as an operating lease, then any gain is recognised
immediately if the sale and leaseback terms ars demonstrably at fair value. Otherwise, the
sale and leaseback are accounted for as follows:

If the sale price is below falr value then the gain or loss Is recognised Immediately other
than to the extent that a loss is compensated for by future rentals at below-market price,
then the loss is deferred and amortised over the period that the asset is expected o be
used.

If the sale price is above fair value, then any gain is deferred and amortised over the
useful life of the asset.

it the fair value of the asset is less than the carrying amount of the asset at the date of the
transaction, then that difference is recognised immediately as a loss on the sale.
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(k)

(0

Leases (continued)
Lessar
Operaiing leases

Assets leased out by the Group under operating leases are included in property, plant and
equipment in the balance sheet, They are depreciated over their expected useful lives on
a basis consistent with similar owned property, plant and equipment. Lease income (nat of
any incentives given to lessees) is recognised over the term of the lease on a straight line
basis.

Inventories

Inventories which comprise consumables used internally for repairs and malintenance are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

Cost is determined on the weighted average basis, and comprises the purchase price and
insidentals incurred in bringing the inventories to thelr present location and condition,

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less all applicable variable seliing expenses. In arriving at net realisable value,
due allowance is made for all damaged, obsalete and slow-moving items.

Financlal assets

N Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale. The

classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification at Inltial recognition.

Financial assets at falr value through profit ot loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financlal assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified In this category if it is acquired or incurrad
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term. Derivatives
are also 'categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges
{see Note B(n)). Assets in this category are classified as current assets if
expecied to be sefifed within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.

Leans and recsivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted In an active market. They are included
in current assets, axcept for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. Thaese are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise 'trade and other receivables’, 'amounts due from
associates, joint ventures and related companies' and ‘deposits, cash and bank
halances’ in the balance sheets.
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() Financial assets (continuad)

(i)

{iH

(i)

Ciassiflcation {continued}

Available-for-sale financial assets

Avallable-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either deslgnated in
this category or not classifled in any of the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Recognition and initial measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assels are recognised on the trade-date,
the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for ali
finanocial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are Initlally recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement — gains and losses

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the sffective interest methaod.

Changes in the fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
including the effects of currency translation, interest and dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss in the petiod in which the changes arise,

Changes In the fair value of avallable-for-sale financlal assets are recognised in
other comprehensive income, except for impairment losses (see accounting policy
Note B(n)) and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets. The
exchange differences on monetary assets are recognised in the income
statement, whereas exchange differences on non-monetary assets are recognised
in other comprahensive income as part of fair value change.,

Interest and dividend inceme on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
separately in profit or loss. Interest on available-for-sale debt securities caloulated
using the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss. Dividends
income on available-for-sale equity instruments are recoghised in profit or loss
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.
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Financial assets (continuesd)

(iv)

Subsequent measurement - Impairment of financial assets

Assels carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if thers is. objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more evenis
that occurred after the inittal recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events} has an impact oh the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financlal assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an
impalrment loss includa:

Significant financial difficulty of the issuer ar obligor;
A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency In interest or
principal payments; '

. The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficuity, granting to the borrower a concession that the lender
would not otherwise consider;

. It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other
financlal reorganisation;

. Disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties; or

. Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the

estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of financial assets since the

initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be

identified with the individual financial assets in the portfolio, including:

{i)  adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the portfolio;
and

{iy  national or local ecanomic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the assets in the portfalic.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (exciuding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate. The assel’s carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised In profit or loss. If loans and receivables’
have a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an Instrument's falr
value using an observable market price.

Iif, in a subsequent period, the amount of the Impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event cccurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement In the debtor's credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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(m)

(n)

Financial assats (continued)

(i)

V)

Subsequent maasurement — Impairment of financial assets (continuéd)
Asseis cariied at amortised cost (continued)
When an asset Is uncollectible, it is written off agalnst the related allowance

account. Such assets are written off after all the necessary procadures have baen
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting petiod whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

For debt secutities, the Group uses criteria and measursment of impairment loss
applicable for ‘assets carried at amortised cost’ above.

In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, in addition to the
criteria for ‘assets carrled at amortised cost' above, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is also considered as an
indicator that the assets are impalred. If any such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss that had been recognised directly in
equity is removed from equlty and recognised in profit or loss. The amount of
cumulative loss that is reclassifled to profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financlal asset previously recognised in profit or loss. Impalrment losses
recognised in profit or loss on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale
are not reversed through profit or loss.

De-racognition

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

When avallable-for-sale financial assels are sold, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified fo the
income siatementis.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilites are offset and the net amount presented in the balance
sheets when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liablity
gimultanecusly.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract Is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.
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(n)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities {(continued)

The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and the nature of the item being hedged. Derivatives
that do not gualify for hedge accounting are classified as held for trading and accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note B(l). The Group designates
cetiain derlvatives as hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or
liability or & highly probable forecast transaction (cash flow hedge).

The Group documents at the Inception of the transaction the retationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and strategy for
undertaking varlous hedging transactions. The Group also documenis its assessmant,
both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derlivatives that are used
in hedging transagctions are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged
items.

The falr values of various derivative instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed
in Note 18 io the financial statements. The full falr value of a hedging derivative is
classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining hedged item Is more than
12 months, and as a current asset or llability when the remaining maturity of the hedged
itemn is less than 12 months.

Cash flow hedae

The sffective portion of changes In the fair value of derivatives that are dasignated and
qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement
within finance Income/(costs)’ and ‘foreign exchange losses’ (Note 5).

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the
hedged itemn affects profit or loss {for example, when the forecast sale that is hadged takes
place). The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging
varlable rate borrowings is recognised in profit or loss and presented separately after net
operating profit,

When the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial
asset ({for example, inventory or property, plant and equipment), the galns and losses
previously deferred In equity are transferred from equity and included in the Initlal
measurement of the cost of the asset. The deferred amounts ars uftimately recognised in
cost of goods sold in the case of inventory, or in depreciation in the case of property, plant
and equipment. .

When a hedging instrument expires or Is sold, or when a hadge no longer meets the
criterfa for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time
remains in equity and Is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no lenger expected to ocour, the cumulative
gain or loss that was reporied In equity is immediately transferred to the income statemant
within ‘finance income/{costs)’ and foreign exchange losses’ (Note 5).
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{r)

{s)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customars for merchandise sold or services
petformed in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected In one year or less
{or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are clagsified as current
assets. Otherwise, they are presented as non-current assets,

Trade receivables are recognised Initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand, bank balances, demand deposits and other short term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, less bank overdrafts. Deposits held as
pledged securities for term loans granted are not included as cash and cash equivalents.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised wheh the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will ba required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be mads. Provislons are
not recognised for future operating losses.
Share capital
{f Classiilcation

Ordinary shares with discretionary dividends are classified as equity.
(i) Share issue costs

Incremental external costs directly attributable to the issuance of new shares or
options are deducted against share premium account.

(i) Dividends distribution
Distributions to holders of an equity instrument is debited directly 1o equity, net of
any related income tax benefit and the corresponding liability is recognised in the
period in which the dividends are approved.

Borrowings and horrowing costs

Borrowings are injtially. recognised at falr value, net of transactlon costs Incurred.

Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between initial

recognised amount and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
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(s)

®

Borrowings and borrowing cosis (continued)

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for thelr Intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substaniially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on gualifying assets Is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred,

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the
loan to the extent thal it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In
this case, the jee is deferred until the drawdown occurs. To the extent there is no avidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which
it relates.

Interest, dividends, losses and gains relating to a financial instrument, or a component
part, classified as a llability is reported within finance cost in the income statements,

" Borrowings are classified as current liabilitiss unless the Group has an unconditional right

to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

Current and deferred Income fax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income tax. Tax is
recoghised in profit of loss, except to the extent that it relates to ltems recognised in other
comprahensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax Is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly In eguity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted ai the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Group's
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates operate and generate taxable Income.

Management periodically evaluaies positioris taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities, This
liability ts measured using the single best estimate of the most likely outcome,

Deferred tax Is provided in full, using the liabllity method, on temporary differences arising
between the amounts attributed to assets and liabilities for tax purposes and thelr carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, dsferred tax is not accounted for If it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or lability in & transaction other than a businsss
combination that at the time of the transaction affects nelither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the daferred tax liability iz settled.
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Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that It is probable that taxable profit will
be avallable against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits including unused investment tax allowance can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabllity is recognised for all taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures or assoclates, except where the timing of the

" reversal of the temporary difference is controlied by the Group and it s probable that the

temporary difference will not reverse In the foreseeable future. Generally the Group Is
unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference for associates and joint ventures.
Only where there is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to conirol the
reversal of the temporary difference, a deferred tax liability is not recognised,

Deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiarles, assoclates and joint veniures, except where the tifing of the
reversal of the temporary difference Is controlled by the parent, investor or joint venturer
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Goenerally the investor or joint venture is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates or joini ventures. Only where there is an agreement in place that
gives the investor or joint venturer the ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference, a deferred tax liability is not recognised.

Deferred and income tax assets and liabilites are offset when there is a [egally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabillties and when the
deferred Income tax assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxabls entity or different taxable entities where there is an intantion
1o settls the balances on a nat basls.

Employee benefits

M Short term employee benefits
Wages, salaries, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the financial year in which the associated setvices are
rendered by the employees of the Group.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan
The Group's contributions to the Employees’ Pravident Fund are charged to
income statement in the financial year to which they relate. Once the contributions
have been paid, the Group has no further obligations. Prepald contributions are

recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.
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v)

(w)

Revenue and other income

Passenger seat sales are in respect of scheduled passenger flight and chartered flight
income and are recognised upon the rendering of transportation services net of discounts.
The ravenus in respect of seats sold for which services have not been rendered is
included in current liabiiities as sales in advance.

Revenue from aircraft operating leases 1s recorded on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease.

Fuel and insurance surcharges, administrative fees, baggage fees, freight and anclllary
sales are recognised upon the completion of services rendered. Related revenue is
recognised upon the completion of services rendered and net of discounts.

Rental income and brand license fees are recognised on an accrual basis,

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a loan and
receivable is impalred, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
belng the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loans and recelivables are recognised using the original effective interest rate.

The Group participates in a loyalty programme where customers accumulate points for
purchases made which entitle them to discounts on future purchases. Award points are
recognised as a cost of sale at the time of issue while revenue from the award points is
recognised when the points are redeemed. The amount of revenue is based on the
number of poinis redeemed and the redemption value of each point. Award points expire
36 months after the initial sale,

Foreign currencies
0] Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financlal statemants
are presented in Ringgit Malaysia, which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency. '

{ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currancy transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the fransactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreigh exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated In foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss, except when deferred In other comprehensive income
as qualifying sash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.
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{w) Foreigh currencies (continued)

(i)

(if)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from operations are included In
arilving at the operating profit. Forelgn exchange gains and losses arising from
borrowings (after effects of effective hedges) and amounts due from associates
and joint ventures are separately disclosed after net operating profit.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated In foreign currency
classified as available-for-sale are analysed between translation differences
resulling from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other changes in
the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences related to changes in
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in ather comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilltles such as
equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-moretary
financial assets, such as equities classified as available-for-sale, are included in
other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinftationary economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated Into the presentation currency as
follows:

. assets and llabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;
. income and expsnses for each income statement are translated at

average exchange rates {unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effact of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

. all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate
component of other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment
in foreign entities are recognised in other comprehensive income,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{w)

{x)

v

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, & disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal Iinvolving loss of control aver a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposali Involving loss of significant Influence over an asscclate
that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences relating to that forelgn
operation recognised in other comprehensive Income and accumulated in the separate
component of equity are reclassiiied to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
in the case of a partlal disposal that does not result in the Group losing conirol over a
subsidlary that Includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss, For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interast in associates or joint ventures that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control) the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differance
is raclassifled to profit or loss.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or setvices that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as cutrent
liabilities if payment Is due within one year or less (or In the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). I not, they are presented as non-current liabilitios.

Trade payables are recognised Initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Contingent assets and liabilities

The Group does not recognise contingent assets and labilities other than those arising
from husiness combinations, but discloses its existence in the financial statements. A
contingent liabllity is a possible obligation that arises frorm past events whose existence
will be confirmed by occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognised because i is
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required io settle the obligation, A
contingent liability also arises in the extremely rare case where there is a’liability that
cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. However, contingent
liabilities do not include financial guarantee contracts. A contingent assat is a possible
asset that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group.
The Group does not recognise contingent assets but discloses its existence where inflows
of economic benefits are probable, but not virtually certain.

The Group recognises separately the contingent liabilities of the acquirees as part of
allocating the cost of a business combination whera their fair values can be measured
reliably. Whare the fair values cannot be measured reliably, the resultmg effect will be
reflected in the goodwill arising from the acquisitions.
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SUMMARY OF 8IGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

) Contingent liabilities (continuad)

Subsequent to the initial recognition, the Group measures the contingent liabilities that are
recognised separately at the date of acquisition at the higher of the amount that would be
recognised in accordance with the provisions of MFRS 137 ‘Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ and the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amertisation recognised in accordance with MFRS 118 ‘Revenue’.

(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-rmaker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been [dentified as the Group Chief Executive Officer that makes strategic
decisions.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated by the Directors and are based on historical
experience and other factors, Including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. N

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, rarely equal the related actual results. To enhance the information
content of the estimates, certain key variables that are anticipated to have a material impact to the
Group’s resulis and financial position are tested for sensitivity to changes in the underlying
parameters. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next vear are explained
below,

(i) Estimated ussful lives and residual values of aircraft frames and engines

The Group reviews annually the estimated useful lives and residual values of aircraft
alrframes and englnes based on factors such as business plans and sirategies, expected
level of usage, future technolegical developments and market prices.

Future resulis of operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates
brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above. A reduction in the estimated
useful lives and residual values of aircraft airframes and engines as disclosad in Note
B(e), would increase the recorded depreciation charge and dacrease the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment. A reduction in 5% in the resldual value of aircraft
airframes and engines would increase the depreclation charge for the financtal year ended
31 December 2015 by RM23,400,000 and RM20,221,000 and decrease the camnying
amount of property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2015 by RM78,000,000 and
RMG5,000,000 for the Group and Company respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i}

(i) -

(iv)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which temporary differences can be utilised. Estimating the
future taxable profits involves significant assumptions, especially in respect of regulatory
approvals for prospective routes, aircraft delivery, fares, load factor, fuel price,
malntenance costs and currency movements. Thase assumpfions have been bullt based
on past performance and adjusted for non-recurring circumstances and a reasohable
growth rate.

Impairment of investment in associates and amothts due from associates

Management reviews the investment in associates and amounts due from associates with
reference to any evidence of impairment. This evidence may include observable data
indieating that thére has been an adverse change in working capital of the associates and
the local economic conditions that correlate with the potential risk of impairment on the
transactions. Impairment assessment is performed on the investment in assocfates and
amounts due from associates whenever events or changes in clreumstance Indicate
indicater of impairment, This impairment assessment exercise requires slgnificant
judgment in estimating the valuation by the associates, which involved uncertainties and
are significantly affected by assumpfions used and Judgment made regarding estimates of
aquity value in respect of fares, load factor, fuel price, maintenance costs and currency
movements.

Sales and leaseback

Judgement is required In the Initial classification of leasas as efther operating leases or
finance leases and, in respect of finance leases, determining the appropriate discount rate
implicit in the lease to discount minimum lesase payments. The Group had accounted for
the alrcraft under the sale and leaseback arrangements as "operating lease” as the Group
operates, but does not own, these aircraft. The Group has no right or obllgation to acquire
these aircratt at the end of the relevant lease terms. The present value of the minimum
lease payments determined at the inception of the lease was not substantially all of the
aircrait's fair value and the lease term under the arrangement is not a major part of the
economic life of the aircraft,
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INCOME STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Revenue

Other income

Operating expenses

- Staff costs

- Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment )

- Aircraft fuel expenses

- Maintenance and overhaul

- User charges

- Aircraft operaling lease
expenses

- Other operating expenses

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Net operating profit

Foreign exchange losses on
borrowings

Forelgn exchange gains on
amounts due from associates
and joint ventures

Galn on disposal of interest in
a jolnt venture

Share of results of joint ventures

Share of results of associates

Profit/{loss) before taxation
Taxation

- Current taxation
- Deterred taxation

Net profit for the financial year

Note

1(a)
1(b)

2
8

ELN

o

11
10

11

o O}

Group Coempany
2015 2014 2015 2014
RM'O00 RM'000 RM'Q00 RMO00
6,297,658 5,415,744 6,001,933 5,415,744
257,975 178,029 212,153 156,338
(759,420) (667,277) (732,935) {B842,222)
(703,245) (719,497) (691,853) (718,202)
(2,000,650) (2,254,237) (2,000,650) (2,254,237)
{196,883) (149,411) {196,637) (149,411}
{685,013) (545,279) (684,342) (645,279)
(330,790) {188,280) (102,232) {198,280)
157,012 (233,760) (895,277) {260,909)
2,036,644 826,032 1,110,160 803,542
154,148 121,869 127,004 121,836
(724,035) (5633,967) (713,196) (533,905)
1,466,757 413,934 523,968 391,473
(1,373,817) (608,085) (1,379,038) {608,087)
601,708 150,293 601,708 190,283
320,500 - - -
25,492 57,266 - .
(825,490) (29,707) - -
215,150 22,701 (253,362) (27,321)
(35,852) (25,638) (35,838) (25,638)
361,982 85,773 361,809 85,773
326,130 60,135 325,971 60,135
541,280 82,836 72,609 32,814
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INCOME STATEMENTS
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Net prafit for the financial year
attributable to:
- Owners of the Compary
« Non-controliing interests

Earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company (sen)

- Basic
- Diluted

32

Group
2015 2014
BMO00 RM'000
541,194 82,836
88 -

541,280 82,836

19.4 3.0
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

=
1=
!

|

Net profit for the financial year

Other comprehensive {loss)/
income '

{tems that may be subsequently
reclasslfied to profit or loss

Available-for-sale Investments

- Net change in fair values 12

-~ Transfer to profit or loss on

disposal

Cash flow hedges

Share of other comprehansive income
of an associate

Foreign currency transiation
differences

Other comprehensive loss
- for the financlal year, net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for
the financial year

Total comprehensive (loss)fincome
attributable to:
- Owners of the Company
- Non-controlling interests

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RM'000 RMP000 RM000 RM'000
541,280 82,836 72,609 32,814
(203,504)  (132,396)  (203,504) (132,396
- (42,077) - (42,077)
(335,664)  (222,239)  (385,664)  (222,289)
(31,430) (30,700) - -
10,130 7,963 - -
(560,468)  (419,449)  (639,168)  (396,712)
(19,188)  (336,613)  (466,559)  (363,898)
(19,274)  (336,618)
86 -
(19,188)  (336,613)
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BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and squipment
Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in joint ventures
Investment in associates
Available-for-sale financial assets
Intangible assets

Deferrad tax assets
Receivables and prepayments
Deposits on aircraft purchase
Amounts due from associates
Derivative financlal instruments

CURRENT ASSETS

fnventories
Recelvables and prepayments
Depaosits on aircraft purchase
Derivative financial instruments
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Amounts due from joint ventures
Amounts due from associates
Amounts dus from related parties
Tax recoverable
Deposits, cash and bank
balances

=

|

(=]
=
[

8
10

12
13
14
15

17
18

(Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014
RMQO0 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
10,927,645 12,533,635 9,805,655 12,527,171
- - 64,860 23,480

164,024 191,620 81,559 81,5659
1,020,640 230,454 712,398 3,760
235,097 384,790 235,097 384,790
19,184 7,334 i - -
828,950 466,068 828,777 466,968
1,412,242 1,132,504 1,385,308 1,113,824
334,487 500,321 334,487 500,321
1,142,119 2,301,528 1,034,869 2,213,755
945,490 381,686 845,490 381,688
17,029,878 18,130,740 15428500 17,697,414
26,162 18,152 26,152 18,152
617,422 682,209 536,340 638,025
348,820 - 348,820 -
419,112 286,298 419,112 286,298
- - 406,225 173,953

5,708 51,188 5,708 34,432
394,970 153,803 297,876 148,907
43,851 3,179 15,787 3,144
3,648 - 3,338 -
2,426,696 1,337,849 2,262,641 1,319,085
4,288,379 2,533,378 4,322,099 2,621,097
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BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

Group Company

Note 2015 2014 2015 2014

RM'Q00 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

LESS: CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 23 1,684,057 773,128 1,523,350 781,578
Sales in advance 664,251 502,810 662,330 501,962
Amounts due to subsidiaries 24 - - 341,216 -
Amounts due to associates 17 - 55,110 - 55,110
Amounts due to related pariles 24 13,661 24,693 13,661 24,683
Borrowings 25 2,377,256 2,274,928 2,251,537 2,274,928
Derivative financial instruments 18 582,491 472,204 582,491 472,204
Current tax liabilities . - 9,380 - 9,712
5,271,716 4,112,253 5,374,504 4,120,187
NET CURHENT LIABILITIES (985,337) (1,578,875) (1,052,495) (1,498,190)

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 23 1,043,994 1,212,044 1,013,836 1,212,044
Borrowings 25 10,235,572 10,453,090 9,481,567 10,453,090
Derivative financial ihstruments 18 237,898 248,095 237,898 248,085
Amaunts due to associates 17 76,216 83,545 21,622 64,965

11,693,687 11,996,774 10,705,023 11,978,194

4,450,854 4,555,091 3,670,882 4,221,030

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 26 278,297 278,207 278,297 278,297
Shara premium 1,230,941 1,230,941 1,230,941 1,230,941
Forelgh exchange reserve 18,848 8,818 - -
Retained earnings 27(a) 3,385,740 2,898,035 2,631,212 2,542,092
Other reserves 27(b) (431,598) 139,000 {369,468) 169,700

4,452,328 4,555,091 3,670,882 4,221,030
Non-controlling interests (1,474) - : . -
Total equity 4,450,854 4,555,001 3,670,982 4,221,030
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AIRASIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit/(loss) before taxation
Adjustments:

Property, plant and equipment
- Depreciation
- {Gain)/loss on disposals
Amortisation of intangible assets
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
financlal assets
impairment of properly, plant and
equipment
Impairment on available-for sale
financial assets
Impairment of trade and other receivables
Wiite-off of amount due from related party
Impairment of amount due from a
subsidlary
Impairment of investment in associates
Fair value gain on derivative
financial instruments
Share of resuits of joint ventures
Share of results of associates
Galn on disposal of interest in
a jolnt venture
Net unrealised forsign exchange loss
Dividend income from:
- available-for-sale financial assets
- an agsoclate
Interest expense
Interest income

Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Recelvables and prepayments
Trade and other payables
Intercompany balances

Cash generated from operations

Interest paid

Interest received

Tax paid

Nat cash from operating activities

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014
RN'O00 RM'D00 RiM'000 RM'000
215,150 22,701 {263,362) (27,321)
703,245 719,497 691,853 718,202
{(19,654) 4,690 {19,658) 4,690
24 - B .
- (42,077) - (42,077)

13,281 - - -

- 10,125 - -

17,523 30,651 17,523 24,853
5,247 - 5,247 -

. . - 14,984

- - 875,653 -
(937,678) (212,308) (937,678) (212,398)
(25,492) (57,266} - -
825,490 29,707 - -
{320,500) - - -
1,268,394 639,614 1,285,653 640,586
{4,145) (4,697) {4,145) (4,897)
{48,064) - - -
724,035 533,967 718,188 533,005
{154,148) (121,869) (127,004} {121,336)

2,262,708 1,652,645 2,227,280 1,528,891
(8,000) 11,368 {8,000) 11,368
(114,875)  (258,466) (200,232}  (208,156)

782,652 101,432 676,787 187,831
(177,538) (725,677) (76,484) (813,887)
2,744,948 681,302 2,619,351 708,367
(658,177) (470,613) {647,338) (470,551)
148,280 106,576 121,135 108,543
(31,114} (15,234) (31,114) {15,234)

2,203,938 302,031 2,062,034 327,125
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Company No.,
284669 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Froperty, plant and equipment
- Additiops
- Proceeds from disposals
Repayment of advances by an associate
Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets
Additional investment I available-for-sale
financial assets
Proceeds from disposal of interest
in & joint venture
Dividend received from:
- an avallable-for-sale financial asseis
- an agsoclate
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Subscription of shares in associates
Additional subscription of shares
In subsidiaries
Advances granted to associate
Refund of deposits on aircraft purchase

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Procesds from allotment of shares
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Rividends paid

Net cash (used in)/generated
from financing activities

Company

Group
2015 2014 2015 2014
RM'000 RM'G00 RM'000 RM'GOG
(613,913) (2,084,641)  (580,489) (2,081,254)
227,881 119,745 227,881 119,362
71,423 80,937 71,423 80,937
- 44,584 - 44,584
(53,811) - (53,811) -
347,044 . 347,044 .
4,145 4,697 4,145 4,697
48,064 - - -
(30,810) - (17,236) -
(78,695) (30,378) - (3,731)
(24,144) - (24,144) .
. (431,258) - (431,258)
. 142,073 - 142,073
(102,818) (2,154,241) (25,187)  (2,124,590)
. 2,064 - 2,064
1,468,223 3,129,496 500,161 8,129,496
(2,677,408) (1,241,080) (1,800,203) (1,241,080
(83,489)  (111,292) (83,489)  (111,202)
(1,302,672) 1,779,188  (1,383,531) 1,779,188
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284669 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 {CONTINUED)

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RM’000 RM'CDO0 RM000 RM'00C

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) FOR THE

FINANCIAL YEAR 798,450 (73,022) 653,316 (18,277)
CURRENCY TRANSLATION
DIFFERENCES . 290,387 30,438 280,240 30,436

DEPOSITS, CASH AND BANK
BALANCES AT BEGINNING QF
THE FINANGIAL YEAR 1,337,849 1,880,435 1,318,085 1,308,926

DEPOSITS, CASH AND BANK
BALANCES AT END OF :
THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2,426,896 1,337,849 2,262,641 1,318,085

For the purposes of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents include the following:

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RM000 RM’000 - RM'000 RM000

Deposits, cash and bank balances
(Note 22) 2,426,696 1,337,849 2,262,641 1,319,085
Less: Deposits pledged as sacurities (710,988) (669,471) {710,988) (569,471)
Cash and cash equivalents 1,715,710 768,378 1,551,655 749,674

The deposits with licensed banks of the Group and the Company amounting to RM710,986,000
(2014: Group and Gompany RM569,471,000) are pledged as securities for banking facilities
granted to the Group and Company {Note 25).
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284689 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(@)

(b)

(©)

On 29 September 2015, the Company subscribed to 49% of perpetual capital security
issued by an associate amounting to IDR2,058 billion (RM625 million) as disclosed in Note
11 to the financial statements. The investment in perpetual capital security was satisfied

via caphtalisation of amounts dua from associate.

Disposal of property, plant and equipment to a subsidiary

Company
2015 2014
RNOCO RM'000

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant

and equipment to a subsidiary 1,105,736
Settlernent of borrowings and related

finance cost by lessor on behalf of

the Company (184,439)
Borrowings transferred to subsidiary (689,172)
Amounts due from a subsidiary (232,125)

Net cash proceeds received from disposal of
property, plant and equipment to a subsidiary “

Disposal of property, plant and equipment pursuant to the sales and leaseback

arrangemant
Group Company,
2015 2014 2015 2014
RM'000 AM’000 RM'000 RM'000

Carrying amount of property,

plant and equipment disposed 1,499,941 - 1,499,941
Gain on disposal of propaerty,
plant and equipment 27,361 - 27,361

Total proceeds from disposal

of proparty, plant and

equipment 1,527,302 - 1,527,302
Securily deposit paid to lessor (34,506) {34,5086)
Settlement of borrowings and

related finance cost by lessor

on behalf of the Company {1,264,915) - (1,264,915)

Net cash proceeds received
from disposal of property,
plant and equipmeant 227,881 - 227,881
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284669 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ 31 DECEMBER 2015

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

fa) Revenue
Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000
Passenger seat sales 3,648,913 2,989,268 3,648,913 2,989,268
Baggage fees 491,787 466,039 491,787 456,039
Airoraft operating lease income 1,423,122 793,020 1,127,347 793,020
Surcharges and fees 180,171 677,241 180,171 677,241
Other revenue 553,665 500,176 553,665 500,776

5,297,658 5415744 6,001,933 5,415,744

Other revenue includes assighed seat, freight, canoellation, documentation and other fees,
and the on-board sale of meals and merchandise.

(b) Other income

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RM'000 RM'000 RM'G00 RM'000
Gainf{loss) on disposals of
propetty, plant and equipment 19,854 (4,690) 19,658 (4,690)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets - 42,077 - 42,077
Fees charged to assoclates providing
commercial air transport services 68,770 61,108 88,770 61,108
Others 169,551 79,534 123,727 57,843

257,975 178,029 212,153 156,338

Other income (*others’) includes commission income, advertising income and fees charged to
related parties providing commercial air transport services.

STAFF COSTS

Group ___Company
2015 2014 2015 ' 2014
RM'OQ0 RM000 RM'000 RM000

Galaries, bonus, allowances and other
employea's benefit 686,917 808,555 662,710 586,420
Defined contribution retirement plan 72,503 58,722 70,225 55,802

759,420 667,277 732,035 842,222

44




Company No,
284669 1 W

AIRASIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

STAFF COSTS (CONTINUED)

Included in staff costs are Executive Directors’ remuneration. The Executive Diractors’ and Non-

Exscutive Directors’ remuneration are as follows:

Giroup and Company

2015 2014
RM'000 RM000
Executive Directors

- salaries, bonus and allowances 12,220 8,531
- defined contribution plan 1,466 1,023
13,686 0,554

Non-Executive Dirgctors
- feas ' 1,246 1,078
14,932 10,632

The remuneration payable to the Directors of the Company is analysed as follows:

Executive Non-executive
2015 2014 2015 2014

Range of remuneration
Below RM150,000 - - 3
RM150,001 to RM200,000 - - 2
RM200,001 to RM250,000 - 2

RM250,001 to RM300,000 -
RM300,001 to RM3560,000 .
RM1,000,001 to KM2,000,000 -
RM2,000,001 to RM3,000,000 1

1

T
o1 AN, 2

RM3,000,001 to RiM4,000,000
EM4,000,001 to RM5,000,000
RM5,000,001 to RME,000,000 -
RAMB,000,001 to RM7,000,000 1 - -

T

PR S
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Company No.
284669 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD
{Incarporated in Madaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The following items have baen charged/(credited) in arriving at other operating expenses:

Group Cornpany
2015 2014 2015 2014
RM'000 -RM'000 RM'000 RM000
Impairment of:
- Amount due from a subsidiary (Note 20) - - - 14,084
- Investment in associates (Note 11) - - 875,653 -
- Avallable for sale financial assets (Note 12) - 10,125 - -
- Property, plant and equipment (Note 8) 13,281 - - -
- Trade and ather receivables (Note 15) 17,523 30,651 17,523 24,8583
Write off of amount due from related party 5,247 - 5,247 -
Rental of Jand and building 18,126 3,629 18,987 3,629
Auditors’ remuneration
- audit fees
(i) PricewaterhouseCoopers Malaysia 887 800 776 758
(i) Others 40 - - .
- non-audit fees
(I} PricewaterhouseCoopers Malaysla 642 1,230 G642 1,230
Rental of equiprnent 1,001 1,791 935 1,791
Adverlising costs 52,131 62,929 52,181 62,929
Net foreign exchange {gains)/|osses
from operations
- Realised (14,794) 18,922 {14,794) 18,922
- Unrealised {425,976) (28,184) (425,976) (28,164)
USER CHARGES

User charges include airport related charges, ground operational charges, aircraft insurance cost,

and inflight related expenses.
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Company No,
284669 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)-

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

FINANCE INCOME/{CQOSTS) AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSSES ON BORROWINGS

Group Company
2015 2014 2018 2014
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

(a) Financs Incoma

Interest income from:

- deposits with licensad banks 28,058 17,889 28,058 17,889
- amounts due from associates 66,462 88,867 686,462 88,867
Gain frominterast rate contracts 3,605 5,824 3,605 6,824
Discounting on deposits 38,091 - 10,982 -
-Discounting oh non-current payables 13,384 - 13,384 -
Othars 4,548 B,289 4,513 8,255

154,148 121,869 127,004 121,835

{b) Finance costs

interest expense

- bank borrowings (679,500)  (522,021)  (677,878)  (522,921)
Amortisation of premiums

for intorest rate caps {9,090) (8,192 (9.080) (8,192)
Discounting and accretion of interest

on deposits (25,527) - (16,742) -
Bank facilities and other charges (9,918) (2,854) {9,486) (2,792)

(724,035)  (533,967)  (713,196)  (533,905)

(c) Foreign exchange losses on borrowings

Borrowings:
- realised 1,414 {5,339) (8,203) (5,339)
- unrealised {(2,292,733) (707,031) (2,298,337) (707,033)
- fair value movement recycled '
from cash flow hedge reserve 820,766 175,256 820,766 175,266
Gain/(loss) fram forward foreign exchange
contracts and others 06,736 {71,971) 96,736 {71,971)

(1,373,817)  (808,085) (1,379,038)  (609,087)

During the financial year, the Group has hedged the foraign currency spot translation on the lease
income for the aircraft that were sub-leased on operating lease basis to its associates companies
against the foreign currency spot translation on the aircraft borrowing repayment. This Is to hedge
the foreign currency risk arising from operating lease income that the Group is exposed to, Gains
and losses recognised in the hedging reserve in equity as of 31 December 2015 will be
continuously released to the income statement within foreign exchange gains/(losses) on
borrowings.
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AIRASIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

TAXATION

Current taxation
Deferred taxation (Note 14)

Current taxation
- Gurrent financlal year

Deferred taxation

- Origination and reversal of temporary
differences

- Tax incentives

The current taxation charge Is in respect of interest income which is assessed separately.

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014

RM000 RM'000 RM000 RM'O00

35,852 25,638 35,838 25,838
{361,982) (85,773) {361,809) (85,773)
(326,130) (60,135) (325,971) © {60,135)

35,852 25,638 35,838 25,638

(308,539) 80,109 (308,366} 80,109

{(53,443) {(165,882) {53,443) (165,882)
(361,982) (85,773) (361,809) (85,773)
{326,130) {60,135} {325,971) (60,135)
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AIRASIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The explanation of the relationship between texation and profit/(loss) before taxation is as

follows:

Profit/(loss) before taxation

Tax calculated at Malaysian tax rate
of 25 % (2014: 25%)

Tax effacts of:

- expenses not deductible for tax purposes
- income not subject to tax

- associates’ results reporfed net of tax

- joint ventures’ results reportad net of tax
- tax incentives

- honh-recuriing tax benefit

- change in statutory tax rate

Taxation

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 BRM'000
215,150 22,701 (253,362) (27,321}
53,788 5,675 (63,341) (6,830)
333,249 147,803 334,279 147,803
(317,284) (24,788) {1,036) (19,171)
208,373 7.427 - -
{6,373) (14,317) - .
2,599 (165,882) 2,699 (165,882)
(598,472) - (598,472) -
- (16,055) - (16,085)
(326,130) (60,135)  (325,971) {60,135)

Basic earnings per share Is calculated by dividing the net profit for the financlal year
attributable o owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue during the financial year.

Net profit for the financial year attributable to owners

of the Company (RM'000)

Weightad average number of ordinary shares in issue (000)

Basic and diluted eamings per sharg (sen)

Group

201 2014
541,194 82,835
2,782,974 2,782,245
19.4 3.0

The Group does not have in issue any financial instruments on other contracts that may entitle
its holder to ordinary shares and therefore, dilutive to its basic eamings per shatre.
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Company No.
284689 | W

AlIRASIA BERHAD
{Incorporated In Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Group
At 31 Dacembar 2015

Alrcraft engines, airframe
and service potential
Alrcraft spares
Alrcrait fixtures and fittings
Bulidings
Motor vehicles
Office equipment, furniture and fittings
Office renovation
Simulator equipment
Operating plant and ground equipment
In-flight equipmant
Training equipment
Work in progress

Accumulated
Accumulated impairment Carrying
Cost _depreciation logs amount
RM000 RM000 RM'CO0 RM'000
13,965,974 (3,368,472) - 10,697,602
266,993 (143,649) - 123,344
144,876 (80,102) - 54,574
2,114 {501) - 1,613
26,941 (21,209) - 5,732
124,956 (69,514) (13.,281) 42 161
23,754 (19,078} - 4,676
4,967 (3,916) - 1,051
50,777 {36,982) - 13,795
1,696 (1,498) - 200
4,588 {4,563) - 25
82,972 - - 82,972
14,700,408 (3,759,482) (13,281) 10,927,645
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Company No.
284669 [ W

AIRASIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Group
At 31 December 2014

Alrcraft engines, airframe
and service potential
Aircrafl spares
Aircraft fixtures and fittings
Buildings
Motor vehicles
Office equipment, furniture and fittings
Office renovation
Simulator equipment
Operating plant and ground equipment
In-flight equipment
Trainlng equipment
Work in progress

Accumulated
Accumulated impairment Carrying
Cost _depreciation loss amount
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'00D
15,699,049 (3,407,667) - 12,291,382
303,800 {(164,165) (16,983) 122,752
125,341 {82,145) - 43,198
2,114 (459) - 1,655
27,450 {19,868) - 7,582
82,092 (56,955) - 25137
23,033 (16,525) - 6,508
4,967 (3,878) - 1,089
44,795 (32,333) - 12,462
1,896 (1,512) - 384.
4,419 {4,284) - 135
21,253 " - 21,253
16,340,309 {(3,789,791) (16,983) 12,533,635
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Company No,
284669 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Company
At 31 December 2015 .

Aircraft engines, airframe
and service potential
Alrcraft sparas
Aircraft fixtures and fittings
Buildings
Motor vehicles
Office squipment, furniture and fittings
Oifice renovation
Simulator equipment
Operating plant and ground equipment
In-flight equipment
Tralning equipment
Work In progress

Accumulated

Accumulated  impairment  Carrying

Cost _depreciation loss amount
RM'000 RM 000 RM'G00 RM'000
12,402,743 (2,905,145) - 9,497,598
266,993 {143,649) - 123,344
140,516 (86,234) - 54,282
2,114 (501) - 1,613
26,941 (21,209) - 5,732
86,766 {63,922} - 22,844
18,794 (17,095) - 2,689
4,967 (3,916) - 1,051

B0, 777 (36,982) - 13,785
1,698 {1,496) - 200
4,588 (4,563} - 25
82,472 - - 82,472
13,090,367 (3,284,712) - 9,805,655
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Company No,
284669 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Accumulated
Accumulated  impairment Carrying
GCost _depreciation loss amount
RiM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000
Company
At 31 December 2014
Aircraft engines, airframe .
and service potential 15,699,049 (3,407,667) - 12,291,382
Aircraft spares 303,900 (164,165) (16,983) 122,752
Aireraft fixtures and fittings 125,341 {(82,145) - 43,196
Buildings 2,114 {458) - 1,855
Motor vehicles 27,450 (19,868) - 7,582
Office equipment, furniture and fittings 78,934 (58,191) - 22,743
Office renovation 19,454 {15,180) - 4,274
Simulator equipment 4,967 (3,878) - 1,089
Operating piant and ground equipment 44,795 {32,333) - 12,462
In-flight equipment 1,896 {1,512) - 384
Training equipment 4,418 (4,284) - 135
Work in progress 19,517 - - 18,517
16,331,836 (3.787,682) (16,983) 12,527,171

Included in property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company are assets with the
following carrying amounts:

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMQ00 RM'000 RM'Q00 RM000
Carrying amount of owned aircraft
sub-leased to associates 3,083,388 4,674,014 2,304,378 4,674,014
Aircraft pledged as security for
borrowings (Note 25} 10,597,502 12,291,382 9,497,598 12,201,382

The beneficial ownership and operational control of aircraft pledged as security for borrowings
rests with the Company when the aircraft is delivered to the Company.

Where the legal tifle to the aircraft Is held by flnanciers during delivery, the legal title will be
transferred to the Gompany only upon settlement of the respective facillties.
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Company Neo.
284669 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD

(incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED})

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unquoted investments, at cost
Less: Accumulated impairment losses

At 1 January

Additional investment in subsidiaries

At 31 December

The detalls of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of entity

Directly held by the
Company

AirAsia Investment Ltd
M (ﬂAAI L!I)ir

AirAsia Go Holiday
Sdn Bhd ("AGH")

AlrAsfa (Mauritius) Limited*

AirAsia Gorporate
_Services Limited*

Ground Team Red Sdn Bhd

Koolred Scn Bhd

AltAsia Global Shared
Services Sdn Bhd

Group's effective

Country of
Incorporation aquity interest
2015 2014
% %
Malaysia 100 100
Malaysia 100 100
Mauritius 100 100
Malaysia 100 100
Malaysia 100 100
Malaysia 100 100
Malaysia 100 100

58

Company

2015 2014
RM'000 RM'GO0
64,806 23,516
{36} {36)
64,860 23,480
23,480 23,480
41,380 “
64,860 23,480

Principal activities

Investment holding
Tour operating business

Providing aircraft leasing
facilities to Thal AlrAsia
Co. Ltd

Facilitate business
transactions for AirAsia
Group with non-resident
goods and service
providers

Speclal purpose vehicle
for financing
arrangements required
by AlrAsia

Investment holding
To provide shared services

and outsourcing for its
affiliates



Company No.

284669 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Country of  Group's effective

Name of entity incorporation equity interest Principal activities

2015 2014

% %
Directly heald by the Company
Asia Aviation Capital Malaysla . 100 100 Providing aircraft leasing
Limited (“"AAC") facilities

MadCience Consulting Malaysia 100 - Provision of central deposltory
Sdn Bhd (“MAD")* @ services for Its affillates
TPaay Asia Sdn Bhd

(formerly known as

Tune Mone(g Sdn Bhd)
(“TPaay")* @

Malaysia | 100 - Provision of financial and other
related services

Tune Box Sdn Bhd
(“Tune Box") © Malaysia 73 - Trading of multimedia content

and squipment

Held by AGH

AirAsia Exp Pte. Ltd Singapore 100 100 Invastment holding
(IIAAEFI)':

Held by AAIL

AirAsia Capital 1.td * Malaysia 100 100 Dormant

*

(@)

{b)

(©)

Not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Malaysia

On 11 March 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, MAD was incorporated in
Malaysia to provide central depository services for its afflliates. The Initial share capital of
MAD is BM2 comprising of 2 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each.

On 6 QOctober 2015, the Company entered Into a Share Sale Agreement to acquire the 81
million ordinary shares and 22 redeemable preference shares in TPaay for a cash
conslideration of RM8.38 million. The acquisition was completed on 6 October 2015 and
TPaay effectively became a 100%-owned subsidiary of the Company. The Company
previously had a 40% interest in TPaay via an acquisition in January 2015 for a cash
consideration of RM10.0 million.

On 3 December 2015, the Company acquired 876,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each,

equivalent to 73% of the total issued and paid-up capital of Tune Box, for a total cash
consideration of RM876,000.
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Company No,
284668 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Mafaysia)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
The details of the subsidiaries are as follows: {continusd)

Details of the assets, llabilities and net cash outflow arising from the acquisition TPaay and Tune
Box during the financlal year are as foliows:

Fair value/
book value
RM'0CO
Cash and bank balanges 7.236
intangible asssts 1,505
Trade and other receivables 31,493 .
Property, plant and equipment 1,241
Trade and other payables (41,778)
Total net assets acquired (333}
Less : Net assets equity accounted praviously (4,380}
Non-controfling interests acquired 1,560
Goodwliil on acquisition 10,369
Purchase consideration for acquisition of subsidiaries 7,236
Purchase consideration for previously held interest in a subsidiary
during the financial year 10,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiaries acquired "(7,236)
Net cash ouiflow on acquisition of subsidiaries 16,000

The purchase price allocation ('PPA) exercise is still ongolng. A provisional goodwill amounting to
RM10,369,000 had been recognised in the financial statements as at 31 December 2015,

The Company does not have any subsidiaries with non-controlfing interests that are matertal to the
Group. There were no transactions with non-controlling Interests during the current financial year.
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AIRASIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM’000

Unquoted investments, at cost B1,559 111,674 81,659 81,559
Share of post-acquisition profits 82,465 79,948 - .
164,024 181,620 81,559

81,559

The Joint ventures listed below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are

Group's effective
aquity interest

Principal activitieg

directly held by the Group:
Principal
place of
business/
country of
Name of entity incorporation
2015
%
Dlrectly heid by the Gompany
Aslan Aviation Centre Malaysia 50
of Excellence Sdn Bhd
("AACOE")
Held by AAE
AAE Travel Pte Ltd Singapore -

(“AAE Travel”)

2014
%

50

50

Avlation training

Online travel agency

* Reclassified as investment in asscclate during the year (Note 11)

All the joint ventures listed above are private companies for which there is no quoted market price

avallabie for its sharss.
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284669 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
There ate ne contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in the joint ventures.

AACOE is an aviation fraining centre with operations in Malaysia and Singapore. AACOE is a
strategic partner of the Company and provides initial and recurrent training for both pilots and flight
attendants, AACOE also provides training to TAA, IAA, PAA, AAIPL and other airline clients in the
region.

Summarised financial information for joint ventures

Set out below are the summarised financial information of the joint ventures which are accounted
for using the equity method:

Summiarised balance sheets

AACOE AAE Travel Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
RM'000 RMO0OO RBMOOD RMO00 RMOO0 RMOOD

Current

Cash and cash equivalents 50,831 58,987 - 126,137 50,831 185,124
Other current assets 59,429 46,108 - 18,961 58,429 65,068
Total current assets 110,260 105,092 - 145,098 110,260 250,190

Financial liabilities

{excluding trade payables) (7,291}  (3,741) - {10,644) (7,201} (14,385)
Other current labilities

{including trade payables) (25,486) (47,658) - [35,333) (25.486) (82,991)
Total current liabilities (32,777) (51,399) - [4B877) (32,777} (97,376)

Non-current

Asssts 363,382 334,869 - 4,652 363,382 339,421
Liabilities (112,817) (108,285) - - {112,817} (108,995)
Net assets 328,048 279,567 - 103,673 328,048 383,240
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AIRASIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Summarised statements of gomprehensive [ncome

AACOE AAF Trave| Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
RW000 RMO00 RMO00 RMO00 RMCO0 RMOO0
Revenua 107,108 85,432 - 438,823 107,103 524,255
Depreciation and amortisation {15,161} (19,111) - (6,6068) (16.151) (25,717)
Interest income - . - - - .
Interest expense (3,977)  {4,139) - - 3,977y  (4,139)
Profit before taxation 51,040 24,075 - A3658 51,040 67,733
Tax Income/(expenss) (2,559) 48,180 - (2,391)  (2,558) 48,799
Proflt after taxation and total
comprehensive income 48,481 73,265 - 41,267 48481 114,532
Dividends received from joint
venttres . - - - - -
Reconciliations of summarised financial information
AACQE AAE Travel Tota]
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
RM'000 RM000 RMO000 RMD00 RMD0D RMO000
Opening net assets at 1 January 279,567 206,302 - 62,408 279,567 268,708
Profit after taxation and total
comprehensive hcome 48,481 73,265 - 41,2687 48,481 114,532
Closing net assets at
31 December 328,048 279,567 - 103,673 328,048 383,240
Interest in joint ventures at 50% 164,024 139,784 - 51,837 164,024 191,620
Carrying value ai 31 December 164,024 139,784 - 51,837 164,024 191,620
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284669 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
RM'000 RM'00D RM'000 RBRM'0C00
Unguoted investments, at cost 888,201 169,434 628,774 3,760
Amounts due from associates deemed
as net investment in associates 959,277 - 959,277 -
Share of post-acquisition (loss)/profit (764,708) 91,720 - -
Share of post-acquisition raserves {62,130) {30,700) - -
1,020,640 230,454 1,588,051 3,760
Accumulated impairment losses - - (875,653) -
1,020,640 230,454 712,398 3,760
The details of the associaies are as follows:
Principal
place of
business/
country of Group's effective
Name of entity incorporation equity interest Principal activities
2015 2014
% %
AirAsia Philippines Inc Philippines 398.9 39.9 Providing air transportation
servicas, currently dormant
Agian Contact Centres Malaysia 50.0 50.0 Providing end-to-end
Sdn. Bhd. solutions for customers
contact management and
contact centre
Think Big Digital Sdn Malaysia 47.8 47.8 Financial services and
Bhd ("BIG") managing customer loyalty
points
Held by AAE
AAE Travel Ple Ltd Singapore 25.0 o Online travel agency
{"AAE Travel”)
Held by AAIL
PT Indonesia AirAsla Indonesia 48.9 48.9 Commercial air transport
{"IAA™) services
Thai AirAsia Go. Ltd Thalland 45.0 45.0 Commercial air transport
(“TAA" services
AirAsia Go Holiday Thailand 49.0 49.0 Tour operating business,
Co. Lid currently dormant
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Company No.
284669 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD

(incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT iN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Principal
place of
business/
country of  Group’s effective
Narms of entity incorporation equity interest Principa] activities
2015 2014
% %
AirAsia Inc ("PAA") Philippines 49.0 40.0 Commaercial air transport
setvices
AlrAsia (India) Private: India 49.0 49.0 Commercial air transport
Limited (“AAIPL™) services
AirAsia Japan Co., Ltd Japan 49.0 49.0 Commaercial air transport
{"JAA") services

*Previously classified as investment in joint venture (Note 10). On 16 February 2015, the
Company, through its wholiy-owned subsidiary, AAE, entered into a Share Purchase Agreement
with Expedia Inc. and Expedia Southeast Asia Pte. Lid. to divest 6,144,280 ordinary shares of
SGD1.00 each in AAE Travel, for a consideration of USD93.75 milllon {approximately RM347
million). The sale was completed on 10 March 2015, resulting in a galn on disposal of
approximately RM321 million. Subsequent to the divestment, the Group's equity stake in AAE
Travel was reduced to 25% and the Investiment in AAE Travel has been reclassified from an
investment in joint venture to an investment in associate.,

All the associates listed above ate private companies for which there are no quoted market price
available for their shares.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’'s interest in the associates.

Additional interests in associates during the financial year ended 31 December 2015

(a) On 25 February 2015, AAIL subscribed to 3,174,927 shares of common stock
representing 49% of the paid-up capilal in JAA for a cash consideration of JPY490 million
(equivalent to RM12.6 million). On 29 September 2015, AAIL subscribed to an additional
14,000,000 shares of common stock representing 49% of the paid-up capital in JAA for a
cash consideration of JPY980 millien {equivalent to RM38.5 million).

()] On 29 July 2015, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, AAIL, invested an
additiona} 496,536,640 ordinary shares in AirAsia (India) Private Limited (“AAIPL" for a
cash consideration of USD7.7 million (equivalent to RM29.5 miilion). The Group's equity
intarest in AAIPL remains as 49%.

(c) On 29 September 2015, the Company subscribed to 49% of perpetual capital security
issued by IAA amounting to IDR2,058 billion (RM625 million) in proportion to its equity
shareholding in JAA. IAA has 1he discretion to defer interest payment and has no obligation
to redeem the principal amount. Therefore, the Company’s investment in this perpetual
capital security is deemed [n substance to be as extension to the Company’s net
investment In |AA and is accounted for as “Investment In Associate”. The investment in
perpetual capital security was satisfled via capitalisation of amounts due from [AA.
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AIRASIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2015 {CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Acquisition of interest and additional investment in assoclates during the financial vear ended 31

December 2014

(@) On 1 July 2014, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, AAIL, enterad into a
Shareholders’ Agreement and a Share Subscription Agreement with Octave Japan
Infrastructure Fund | GK {“Octave”), Rakuten, Inc. (“Rakuten”), Noevir Holdings Co. Lid.
(“Noevir”) and Alpen Co. Ltd. (“Alpen”) for the purpose of forging a joint venture
cooperation between the Company, Octave, Rakuten, Noevir and Alpen to establish a low
cost airline in Japan, i.e. AirAsia Japan Co., Ltd. (“JAA"). On 18 July 2014, AAIL
subscribed to 3,174,927 shares of common stock and 3,825,073 shares of non-voting
convertible stock, representing 49% of the paid-up capital and 33% voting Interest in JAA
for a cash conslideration of JPY490 milllon (equivalent to RM15.9 million).

() On 31 October 2014, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, AAIL, invested
an additional 20,000,036 ordinary shares in AirAsia (India) Private Limited ("AAIPL") for a
cash consideration of INR20C milfion (equivalent to RM10.8 million), The Group's equity
interest in AAIPL remains as 49%.

Impairment loss on investment in associates

As at 31 Dacamber 2015, the Group’s and the Company's investment in associates was testad for
impairment due to continuing losses incurred. The racoverable amount of the investment was
computed using falr value less cost to sell method based on market multiple approach in valuing
the various businesses.

A forward enterprise value/EBITDAR multiple of 7.5 times has been adopted in determining the
estimated enterprise value. Subsequently, other surplus assets and net debt items have been
adjusted for accordingly in arriving at the equity value and the recoverable amount of investment in
associates.

As a rastlt of the impairment assessmant, the Company recognised an impairment loss of RM876
million in the income statement on its Investment in associates,

The Directors consider TAA, 1AA, and PAA as material associates 1o the Group, TAA, |1AA and
PAA are all operators of commercial air transport services which are based In Thalland, Indonesia
and Japan respectively. These assoclate companies are sirategic investments of the Company
and form an essential part of the Company's growth strategy. They provide access to a wider
geographical market and network coverage in the provision of air transport services across the
ASEAN region.
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